
      

NO T ICE O F  MEET ING    
CIT Y O F  G ARLAND, T EXAS    

PLAN CO MMISSIO N 
City  Hall,  Counc il Chambers  

William E. Dollar  Munic ipal Build ing  
200 N. F if th Street 

G ar land, T ex as   
J uly  8,  2024 at 7:00 p.m.     

 
A meet ing of the Plan Commis s ion of the C ity  of  G ar land, T ex as  w ill be held at the aforementioned loc at ion, date, and t ime to dis c us s  and c ons ider  the                         
follow ing agenda items .  

A pre-meet ing w ill begin at 5:30 p.m. at  the s ame loc at ion as  the regular  meet ing.  T he agenda for  the pre-meet ing is  the s ame as  for  the regular                     
meet ing, and may  inc lude addit ional items  as  s et for th below.         

  INVO CAT IO N AND PLEDG E O F  ALLEG IANCE:  I t  is  the c us tom and tr adit ion of the members  of the Plan Commis s ion to hav e an inv oc at ion and rec ita l                            
of  the Pledge of Allegianc e pr ior  to the beginning of the meet ing.  Members  of the audienc e are inv ited to par t ic ipate.  Howev er ,  members  of the                      
audienc e are not r equir ed to par t ic ipate.  T he dec is ion to par t ic ipate is  s tr ic t ly  a matter  of  pers onal c hoic e and has  no bear ing on matter s  to be                             
c ons idered by  the Plan Commis s ion and w ill not af fec t the dec is ions  to be made dur ing the meet ing.             

T he meet ing w ill be broadc as t on C ity  of  G ar land G ov ernment Ac c es s  T elev is ion (CG T V) .  CG T V is  av ailable v ia G ar landT X.gov , c hannel 16                                
(Spec trum) , Channel 44 (F ront ier ) ,  and c hannel 99 (AT &T  U-v ers e) .   Meet ings  are broadc as t online v ia liv e- s tr eaming, on-demand, and air  on CG T V                           
with s ev eral r ebroadc as ts  dur ing the week  of the meet ing.           

Public  Comments
Your  c omments  mus t r e late to an item on th is  agenda -  non-germane c omments  are not in order .   T ime limits  w ill be impos ed by  the Chairman as                       
appropr iate to the nature of the agenda item.  G enerally ,  public  s peak ers  are giv en three minutes .                 

IN-PERSO N CO MMENT S: Regis tr at ion w ill be r equir ed for  any  c it iz en w is hing to s peak . Speak ers  s hall r egis ter  us ing the elec tr onic  r egis tr at ion k ios k s                                   
in the lobby  of C ity  Hall.    

G ar land C ity  Hall and Counc il Chambers  are wheelc hair  ac c es s ible.   Spec ial park ing is  av ailable on the eas t s ide of C ity  Hall and on Aus t in & State                        
Street wes t of  C ity  Hall.   Pers ons  w ith dis abilit ies  who plan to at tend th is  meet ing and who may  need aux iliar y  aids  or  s er v ic es  mus t c ontac t the C ity                               
Sec retar y 's  O ff ic e at ( 972)  205-2404 at leas t two work ing day s  pr ior  to the meet ing s o that appropr iate ar rangements  c an be made.  BRAILLE IS NO T                          
AVAILABLE.

I f  the Plan Commis s ion adjourns  into ex ec ut iv e s es s ion dur ing th is  meet ing, the ex ec ut iv e s es s ion w ill be c onduc ted between and among the members                           
of the Plan Commis s ion and relev ant C ity  s taf f .   Public  ac c es s  to that meet ing is  prohibited by  State law.                         
 

C ON SEN T AGEN D A       
 

Al l  i tems under th is section are recommended for approval  by a single motion of the P lan C ommission,       
w i thout d iscussion.  The P lan C ommission has had the opportuni ty to review  each of these i tems during a       
pre-meeting.  The C hai rman w i l l  announce the agenda and provide an opportuni ty for members of the      
audience and the P lan C ommission to request that an i tem be removed and considered separate ly.      
 
      

1. MINUTES   

 

a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the June 24, 2024 meeting.
 

2. PLATS   

 

a. P 24-20 Sears-Miller - Replat
 



      

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 

Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fi l l out a speaker card and give 
it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are located at the entrance to the
Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit and
may provide for rebuttal.  All comments and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

  

 

3. ZONING   

 

a. Consideration of the application of Spiars Engineering, requesting approval of a 1) Change in zoning from
Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) Uses to a Planned Development
(PD) District for Multi-Family-2 (MF-2) District Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a Planned Development
(PD) District for Multi-Family-2 (MF-2) Uses. This property is located at 2200 West Campbell Road.
(District 7) (File Z 24-05)

 

b. Consideration of the application of Spiars Engineering, requesting approval of a Change in Zoning from
Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) Uses to Single-Family Attached
(SFA) District. (District 7) (File Z 24-12)

 

c. Consideration of the application of Mojibola Shobande, requesting approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision
(SUP) for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use and 2) a Plan for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use.
This property is located at 2723 National Place. (District 5) (File Z 24-13) (The applicant requests
postponement of this item to the July 22, 2024 Plan Commission meeting.) 

  

 

d. Consideration of the application of Triangle Engineering, requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to
Planned Development (PD) District 04-45 for Community Retail Uses, 2) a Specific Use Provision for a Day
Care, Youth -- Licensed Child-Care Center Use on a property zoned Planned Development (PD) District 04-
45 and 3) a Detail Plan for a Day Care, Youth -- Licensed Child-Care Center Use. This property is located at
4802 North President George Bush Turnpike. (District 1) (File Z 24-19)

 

e. Consideration of the application of ZoneDev on behalf of StoneHawk Capital , requesting approval of 1)
an amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 18-20 for Mixed Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for Multi-
Family-2 (MF-2) Uses. This property is located at 121 & 151 East I-30. (District 3) (File Z 24-25)

 

f. Consideration of the application of R-Delta Engineers, Inc. , requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to
Planned Development (PD) District 85-62 for Industrial and Community Retail Uses and 2) a Concept Plan
for a Lineman Training & Bulk Materials Storage. This property is located at 2701 East Centerville Road.
(District 2) (File Z 24-26) (THIS ITEM HAS BEEN POSTPONED).

 

4. ADJOURN   

 

NOTICE: The Plan Commission may recess from the open session and convene in a closed session if the discussion of any of the listed agenda items concerns matters regarding
priviledged and unpriviiledged client information deemed confidential by Rule 1.05 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct.  Sec. 551.071, Tex. Gov't Code.

NOTE: A quorum of the City Council may be in attendance and may or may not participate in the discussions of the Committee or board.



GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 1. a.            
Meeting Date: 07/08/2024  
Item Tit le:  Plan Commission Minutes for June 24, 2024
Summary:
Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the June 24, 2024 meeting.

Attachments
June 24, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes



MINUTES
 

 
The Plan Commission of the City of Garland convened in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, June 24, 2024, in
the Council Chambers at the William E. Dollar Municipal Building, 200 N. Fifth Street, Garland, Texas, with the
following members present:

Present: Scott Roberts, Chairman  
Wayne Dalton, 2nd Vice Chair  
Julius Jenkins, 1st Vice Chair  
Stephanie Paris, Commissioner  
Georgie Cornelius, Commissioner  
Jaric Jones, Commissioner  
Patrick Abell, Commissioner  
Michael Rose, Commissioner  
Bob Duckworth, Commissioner  

Staff Present: Angela Self, Interim Planning Director
Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner
Trey Lansford, Deputy City Attorney
Elisa Morales, Recording Secretary

 
C O NSENT  AG EN DA        

 
All items  under  th is  s ec t ion ar e  r ec ommended for  appr ov a l by  a  s ing le  mot ion o f  the Plan C ommis s ion,  w ithout  d is c us s ion.   T he Plan C ommis s ion has                                           
had the oppor tun ity  to  r ev iew  eac h o f  thes e items  dur ing a  pr e- meet ing.   T he C hair man w ill announc e the agenda and pr ov ide an oppor tun ity  for                                  
member s  o f  the aud ienc e and the Plan Commis s ion to  r eques t  that  an item be r emov ed and c ons ider ed s epar ate ly .                           

Mot ion   was made by Commissioner Paris to appr ov e    the Consent Agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Abell. Mot ion c ar r ied     : 8  Ayes, 1  Abstain by Commissioner Jones. 
 
        

1. MINUTES APPROVED
 

a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the June 10, 2024 meeting.     

 

2. PLATS  
 

a. P 24-17 Redbud Subdivision No. 20 -- Final Plat APPROVED   

 

b. P 24-19 Riverset Phase 3 -- Final Plat APPROVED   

 



        

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 

Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must f i l l  out a speaker   
card and give it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are
located at the entrance to the Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize
speakers; he may impose a t ime limit and may provide for rebuttal.  All comments
and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

 

 

3. ZONING  
 

a. Consideration of the application of Hemphill,  LLC by Faulk & Foster  , requesting approval of
1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 03-52 for Community Retail Uses; 2) a
Detail Plan for an Antenna, Commercial Use and 3) a Specific Use Provision (SUP) for an
Antenna, Commercial Use. This property is located at 1102 North Country Club Road. (District
1) (File Z 23-43)

The applicant, Ralph Wyngarden, 1428 Trailside Court NW, Grand Rapids, MI 49504, provided
an overview of the request and remained available for questions. 

Commissioner Dalton asked the applicant what carrier would be on the proposed tower. 

The applicant stated the carrier would be AT&T and further added that the tower has space for
three additional providers. The applicant clarified that the space is not restricted to only cell
providers. They are open to emergency services antennas, wireless internet providers, and any
other type of technology involving internet. 

Commissioner Dalton stated the reason for his question about the provider was because the
towers are capable of multiple users and the tower that is only 600 feet away should be able to
handle AT&T as well. 

The applicant explained that AT&T needed to have a 75-foot centerline for its antennas to meet
its service objective. The SBA Tower is a 65-foot tower and it currently has an occupant on the
top slot which would be about a 60-foot centerline. The applicant is unsure if there are other
lease spaces below that, but in terms of availability, there are approximately 40 feet available,
which is about half of what AT&T needs, so that is the issue with the existing tower. The
applicant further explained that in terms of other carriers and other needs, there is enough need
to keep two shorter towers both occupied and the additional space that they would also provide
would be useful in the future for other providers. 

Chair Roberts suggested to the applicant that as he prepares to move his proposal to Council,
he may want to provide a propagation map to show where the gaps are and how they will fill in
to indicated as to why he is asking to reduce the 5,000 square feet.

The applicant stated that the issue did not come up with staff and that is the reason why that
has not been presented. 

Chair Roberts asked the applicant if the needs for more towers because of capacity.

The applicant stated the need was for signal strength but it also carves out a capacity piece
that is near the neighborhood.

Resident speaking in opposition of the request:

Bebb Francis, III, 112 E Pecan, Suite 550, San Antonio, TX 78205.

The resident speaking in opposition pointed out that the existing tower is an 85-foot tower and
not a 65-foot tower and that they would have a 75-foot rad available and that the proposed
tower would only be .13 miles from the existing SBA Cell Tower. To date, they have not been
contacted about any issues or concerns with the existing cell tower nor has any carrier
contacted them about whether the existing cell tower could accommodate the additional

DENIED   



equipment. Additionally, the resident pointed out that from a technical standpoint, the GDC does
not authorize an amendment to the PD to disregard the 5,000 foot separation and no information
has been brought forward to meet the criteria for approval of an SUP. 

Commissioner Dalton asked Mr. Francis what carriers are currently on the existing tower. 

Mr. Francis stated that the existing carrier is T-Mobile and that they have a 75-foot rad that is
vacant. 

Commissioner Dalton asked Mr. Francis to confirm that they have plenty of room available on
their existing tower and asked if they have approached AT&T and asked specifically if they
need space on their tower.

Mr. Francis stated that AT&T has not reached out to them to ask what available space they
have. 

Resident in favor of the request but not speaking:

Mitchell Meyers, 1102 & 1130 N Country Club Road, Garland, TX 75040.

The applicant clarified to the Commission that in terms of the process and what has been
presented, since working with staff, it was their understanding that as of right, this was an
allowed tower under the existing PD. They were further advised by staff that all that was
required was a Detail Plan and not an SUP. Regarding Mr. Francis' presentation stating their
tower height is 85 feet, the applicant still questions that based on the information he found on
the Antenna Structure Registration on the FCC database that basically states the tower is 65
feet. The applicant clarified that staff has been aware for a while that the carrier was AT&T. 

Commissioner Jenkins asked the applicant how they determined the existing tower was 65
feet. 

The applicant responded the information on the height of the tower was taken from the FCC
database. 

Commissioner Jenkins noted that the January 24, 2024 letter submitted in opposition indicates
that the tower is not 80 feet but that the tower could be supplemented to have an additional
height. Mr. Jenkins added that he would be using the information on the letter and the
information presented as documented on the FCC to determine that the existing tower is
probably 65 feet. 

The applicant responded that from his understanding it appears that Mr. Francis needs to
remove their client from their tower to justify extending his up to the 80 feet. The applicant
stated that there is a federal provision that allows the extension of an already constructed
tower if there is a carrier to justify the extension. 

Commissioner Jenkins asked the applicant to expand on the unique tower and help him better
understand what the top space is. 

The applicant clarified that the information should be changed to reflect AT&T as the carrier. 

Commissioner Paris stated that it is her understanding that a requirement exists that cell
towers have to be within 5,000 feet of each other and the proposed requests is only within 600
feet of each other. 

The applicant confirmed that the 5,000 foot requirement is correct but that is in an SUP
situation and not in a PD where it provides the use.

Commissioner Cornelius stated her concerns on the understanding of the SUP and its
requirements and the PD that was presented and what exactly did the applicant know of the
required process. 

The applicant stated that their understanding is that when the PD referred to a Type 1 (85 foot
or lower) that was allowed by right and with a Type 2 (85 foot or higher) an SUP would be



required and that is where they saw the cutoff. Their understanding was that if the tower was 85
feet or higher, an SUP would be required but if it was 85 feet or lower, then the use would be
allowed by right and the only additional requirements would be a Detail Plan to work out the Site
Plan details. 

Angela asked the Commission to refer to the staff presentation which identified that there was a
PD in place for this site and per the PD, an SUP was required for the antenna. The PD refers to
a Type 2 which is how it was defined when it was written in 2003 and that is the definition that
staff is following for this request.

Matthew did confirm that the PD does require an SUP for a Type 2 antenna. As for the process,
if this proposal was a Type 1 antenna or if there was no SUP required for a Type 2 within this
PD, the applicant would still be required to go through this process and the same drawings
would be submitted because in general in the GDC requirements per the 5,000-foot setback.

Chair Roberts stated that per his understanding, by itself the GDC would not require this but
because this is a PD that predates the GDC, that states any tower that goes there would
require an SUP regardless of the height of the tower. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Dalton to close the public hearing. Seconded by
Commissioner Jenkins. Motion carr ied : 9 Ayes, 0 Nays. 

Commissioner Dalton stated that every request that has come before the Plan Commission for
a cell tower has been attached to a heat map that shows the reason the cell tower is needed. In
this day in age, it is not uncommon to see all three cellular providers on one tower. In this
situation, we have a case where a tower exists with one provider and a proposal is being made
to install a second tower with one provider. Because of this, he cannot support this proposal.
Commissioner Dalton believes the Commission should stick with the rules the City
implemented years ago, as it is for the visual benefit of the citizens.

Chair Roberts did point out that the Commission has approved similar types of requests with
less than 5,000 feet in the past due to dropped calls and the carrier has been asked if there are
other options where the antenna could be placed. Chair Roberts does not feel the case has
been presented for the need of the additional antenna. 

Commissioner Abell pointed out a similar case that was brought before the Commission a few
months back near the Bass Pro area where a compelling case was made involving dropped
calls and high density. He does not see the same case for this proposal with single family
houses in a sparse area. 

Motion was made by Commisioner Dalton to deny  the application. Seconded by Commissioner
Jenkins. Motion carr ied : 9 Ayes, 0 Nays. 

 

b. Consideration of the application of R-Delta Engineers, Inc. , requesting approval of 1) an
Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 85-62 for Industrial and Community Retail
Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a Lineman Training & Bulk Materials Storage. This property is
located at 2701 East Centerville Road. (District 2) (File Z 24-26) (The applicant requests
postponement of this item to the July 8, 2024 Plan Commission meeting.) 

Motion was made by Commissioner Jenkins to postpone the application per the applicant's
request to the July 8, 2024 Plan Commission Meeting. Seconded by Commissioner Abell.
Motion carr ied : 9 Ayes, 0 Nays. 

POSTPONED

 

4. ADJOURN

There being no further business to come before the Plan Commission, the meeting adjourned at
7:50 p.m. 

 

 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS  

 
/s/ Scott Roberts, Chairman  /s/ Elisa Morales, Secretary



GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 2. a.            
Meeting Date: 07/08/2024  
Item Tit le:  P 24-20 Sears-Miller - Replat
Summary:
P 24-20 Sears-Miller - Replat

Attachments
P 24-20 Sears-Miller - Replat Report & Attachments



Planning Report 
File No: P 24-20 /District 6 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: July 8, 2024 
 
REPLAT 
Sears-Miller Replat 
 
LOCATION 
1617 & 1619 Kings Road 
 
ZONING 
Industrial (IN) District 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
One (1) Lot 

 
ACREAGE 
13.447 acres 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this Replat to develop warehouse buildings. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Replat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 24 x 36 Plat  
 
PREPARED BY:                                       REVIEWED BY: 
Angela Self, FAICP                                   Angela Self, FAICP 
Interim Director of Planning                      Interim Director of Planning                              
Planning and Development                                    
972-205-2450  
aself@garlandtx.gov 
  
 
 
 



K
IN

G
S

 R
D

S  2 0 - 1 8S  2 0 - 1 8

S  1 5 - 1 4S  1 5 - 1 4

I NI N

I NI N

I NI N

3101

1501

1617

2760

1602

3338

3342

3301

3305

1619

¯
0 300 600 Feet

PLAT MAP P 24-20 INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



817.268.3316

2023-214-003 PAGE 1 OF 1NOVEMBER 30, 2023

REPLAT

SEARS-MILLER
REPLAT OF LOT 3

LOT 3R, BLOCK 1
BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 3, BLOCK 1

SEARS-MILLER REPLAT
AND A PORTION OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1
SEARS INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT NO. 2

SITUATED IN THE BENJAMIN DYE  SURVEY
ABSTRACT NUMBER 417

CITY OF GARLAND
DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
CITY CASE NO. 231010-2

SITE

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

NOTES

1. Grid Bearings based on the Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North Central Zone 4202
from GPS observations using the RTK Cooperative Network.

2. Each lot corner is monumented by a 1/2" iron rod with yellow cap stamped
"ypassociates.com" unless denoted otherwise.

3. Selling a portion of this addition by metes and bounds is a violation of the City of Garland
development code and is subject to withholdings of utilities and building permits.

4. The purpose of this plat is to create 3 easements and abandon 2 easements.

5. The surveyor has not abstracted the record title and/or easements of the subject property.
The surveyor prepared this survey without the benefit of a title commitment.

6. 40' railroad easement as shown on the plat recorded in Volume 69143, Page 2382 DRDCT,
and Volume 78041, Page 409, DRDCT as described in Volume 4502, Page 301, DRDCT
has been released and quitclaimed by Volume 94074, Page 4331 DRDCT

7. 30' Building Line (Volume 69143, Page 2382 DRDCT) hereby abandoned by this plat.

8. 10' Electric Easement created by Volume 69143, Page 2382 DRDCT and Volume 78041,
Page 409 DRDCT shows to be 10' from the West line of the record document.  Current
location is centered on Utility Poles.

SCALE
1" = 60'

N
N

Preliminary, this
document shall not be

recorded for any
purpose and shall not be
used or viewed or relied
upon as a final survey

document.

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, Desireé L. Hurst,  a Registered Professional Land Surveyor, licensed by the State of Texas, affirm that this plat was
prepared under my direct supervision, from recorded documentation, evidence collected on the ground during field
operations and other reliable documentation; and that this plat substantially complies with the Rules and Regulations of
the Texas Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors, Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 212, and the
City of Garland Development Code. I further affirm that monumentation shown hereon was either found or placed as
described hereon and is in substantial compliance with the City of Garland Development Code; and that the digital
drawing file accompanying this plat is a precise representation of this Signed Final Plat

Dated this the __________ day of _________________________________, 2024

__________________________________________________________________
Desireé L. Hurst
Texas Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 6230

This certificate is revoked and the survey null and void if this document is altered in any manner, used or relied upon by
any person other than those addressed above or does not bear an original signature and embossed seal of the Surveyor.

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF TEXAS           §
COUNTY OF DALLAS     §

Whereas, KINGS ROAD INDUSTRIAL OWNER, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, is the owner of a 13.447 acre tract of
land situated in the Benjamin Dye Survey, Abstract Number 417, located in the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas, being a
part of Lot 1, Block 1, of Sears Industrial District No. 2, an Addition to the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas, recorded in
Volume 78041, Page 409, Deed Records, Dallas County, Texas (DRDCT), all of Lot 3, Block 1, of Sears-Miller replat, an Addition
to the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas, recorded Instrument No. 201300020593, Official Public Records, Dallas County,
Texas (OPRDCT), and being all the tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to Kings Road Industrial Owner, LLC,
recorded in Instrument Number 202400063118, OPRDCT, said 13.447 acre tract as determined from a survey by Desireé L.
Hurst, RPLS 6230 on April 02, 2024, (ground distances are expressed in US Survey Feet using a project combined scale factor
of 1.000136506) being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a found 1/2" iron rod with green cap stamped "CROWLEY RPLS 6484" having Texas Coordinate System of the
North American Datum of 1983 (2011) epoch 2010, North Central Zone Grid Coordinates of Northing 7015123.1 and Easting
2528262.1, on the North line of said Lot 1 and on the South line of Lot 3R, Block 1 of Sears-Industrial District No. 4 Replat, an
Addition to the City of Garland, Texas, recorded in Instrument Number 202000035298, OPRDCT;

THENCE South 00 Degrees 40 Minutes 58 Seconds East (grid bearings based on said Texas coordinate system), across said
Lot 1, a distance of 635.83 feet to a found 1/2" iron rod with green cap stamped " CROWLEY RPLS 6484" on the South line of
said Lot 1 and the North line of said Lot 3;

THENCE North 89 Degrees 17 Minutes 45 Seconds East, with the South line of said Lot 1 and the North line of said Lot 3, a
distance of 553.95 feet to a found 3 1/4" Aluminum Disk Stamped "Bury + Partners Sears Miller" at the Southeast corner on
said Lot 1, the Northeast corner of said Lot 3 and on the West right-of-way line of Kings Road;

THENCE South 00 Degrees 41 Minutes 32 Seconds East, with the East line of said Lot 3 and the West right-of-way line of said
Kings Road, a distance of 383.27 feet to a found 5/8" iron rod with yellow cap stamped " BURY PA" at the Southeast corner of
said Lot 3 and the Northeast corner of Lot 2R, Block 1, of said Sears-Miller Replat;

THENCE South 89 Degrees 17 Minutes 45 Seconds West, with South line of said Lot 3, the North line of said Lot 2R and at a
passing distance of 907.84 feet a found 1/2" iron rod with yellow cap stamped "ypassociates.com", continuing a total distance
of 917.85 feet to a point for (unable to set corner) at the Southwest corner of Lot 3;

THENCE North 00 Degrees 58 Minutes 28 Seconds West, with the West line of a said Lot 3, distance of 1,019.17 feet to point
for corner (unable to set corner) at the Northwest corner of said Lot 1;

THENCE North 89 Degrees 18 Minutes 12 Seconds East, with the North line of said Lot 1 and the at a passing distance of
12.18 feet a found 5/8" iron rod and continuing a total distance of 369.03 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing
13.447 acres, or 585,772 square feet of land, more or less.

Feet
0 60 120

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS DALLAS COUNTY TEXASOPRDCT
SET 1/2" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW CAP STAMPED "ypassociates.com"SIR

LEGEND
BOUNDARY LINE
EASEMENT LINE

DEED RECORDS DALLAS COUNTY TEXASDRDCT

SURVEYOR:
YAZEL PEEBLES & ASSOCIATES LLC
PO BOX 210097
BEDFORD, TX, 76095
PHONE: 817.268.3316

ENGINEER:
KIMLEY HORN
2600 N CENTRAL EXPRESS WAY SUITE 400
RICHARDSON, TX, 75080
PHONE: 972.770.1300

STATE OF TEXAS            §
COUNTY OF TARRANT  §

Before Me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared _________________________, known
to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that
he/she executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity therein
stated.

Given under my hand and seal of office this  ____ day of _____________, 20       .

_____________________________________

Notary Public in an for the State of Texas

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

Approved and accepted for the City of Garland this ________ day of ____________, 20__
by the City Plan Commission of the City of Garland, Texas.

______________________________
Chairman of the Plan Commission

______________________________
Director of Planning Department
The approval of this plat is contingent upon the plat being filed with the County Clerk of
Dallas County within 180 days from the above date.

SPACE RESERVED FOR COUNTY RECORDING LABEL

OWNER'S DEDICATION

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That KINGS ROAD INDUSTRIAL OWNER, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, the owner of the property described in this plat,
acting by and through its duly authorized agent, does hereby adopt this plat, designating the property as Sears-Miller Replat of
Lot 3, an Addition to the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas and does hereby dedicate, in fee simple and to the public use
forever, any streets and alleys shown there of and does further dedicate to the public use forever the easements shown thereon for
the purposes indicated; provided, however, that no public dedication is made or intended as to any private easement, screen wall
easement, or wall maintenance easement shown on this plat. All easements dedicated by this plat shall be open to, without
limitation, all public and private utilities using or desiring to use the same for the purposes dedicated. No building, fence, tree,
shrub, or other structure, improvement or growth shall be constructed, reconstructed or placed upon, over or across any easement
dedicated by this plat in such a manner as to restrict the use or scope of, or interfere with the purpose and intent of the easement.
Any public or private utility shall have: (1) the right to remove and keep removed all or any part of any building, fence, tree, shrub,
or other structure, improvement or growth which in any way may endanger or interfere with the construction, reconstruction,
maintenance, operation or efficiency of such utility; and (2) the right of ingress and egress to or from and upon such easements for
the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining and adding to, enlarging, or removing all or parts of
its operation without the necessity at any time of procuring the permission of anyone. The maintenance of paving on utility
easements and fire lanes is the responsibility of the property owner. Any and all maintenance of screening walls, screen wall
easements, retaining walls, and wall maintenance easements is the responsibility of the property owner, its successors, or assigns.
All utility easements dedicated by this plat shall also include an additional area of working space for construction, reconstruction,
additions, enlargements, and maintenance including such additional area necessary for installation and maintenance of manholes,
cleanouts, fire hydrants, water services and wastewater services from the main to the curb or pavement line.

The undersigned does covenant and agree that the access easement(s) dedicated on this plat may be utilized by any person,
including the general public, for ingress and egress to other real property, for both vehicular and pedestrian use and access, in,
along, upon and across the premises containing the access easement(s).

The City of Garland, Texas shall not be responsible for the maintenance or operation of any detention area designated on this plat
or for any damage or injury to property or persons that results from the flow of water along, into or out of those detention areas,
or for the control of erosion. The construction, operation, and maintenance of any detention area designated on this plat is
controlled by and subject to the applicable provisions of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, as amended, or the Garland
Development Code, as amended.

The City reserves the right to require minimum finished floor elevations on any lot contained within this addition. The minimum
elevations shown are based on the most current information available at the time the plat is filed and are subject to change.

This plat is approved subject to all platting ordinances, rules, regulations and resolutions of the City of Garland, Texas.

WITNESS, my hand at Garland, Texas, this the ______________ day of __________, 20__.

KINGS ROAD INDUSTRIAL OWNER, LLC

BY _______________________________
     Ken Chang, Sr., Managing Director

STATE OF TEXAS            §
COUNTY OF _______  §

Before Me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared _________________________, known to me
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she
executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity therein stated.

Given under my hand and seal of office this  ____ day of _____________, 20       .

_____________________________________

Notary Public in an for the State of Texas

DETAIL A - EASEMENTS BY THIS PLAT
SCALE 1" = 20'

LINE TABLE

NO.

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

BEARING

S89°17'45"W

S00°42'15"E

N89°17'45"E

S00°42'15"E

S89°17'45"W

N00°42'15"W

N59°52'41"W

S89°17'45"W

N00°42'15"W

N89°17'45"E

S00°42'15"E

N00°41'32"W

N00°41'32"W

N89°17'45"E

S00°42'15"E

N89°17'45"E

N00°42'15"W

N89°17'45"E

S00°42'15"E

N89°17'45"E

LENGTH

832.35'

240.00'

42.30'

30.00'

33.96'

345.74'

16.78'

43.31'

289.00'

41.00'

275.98'

5.26'

35.14'

9.28'

20.14'

787.50'

22.00'

15.00'

22.00'

52.90'

LINE TABLE

NO.

L21

L22

L23

L24

L25

L26

L27

L28

L29

L30

L31

L32

L33

L34

L35

L36

L37

L38

L39

L40

BEARING

N00°42'15"W

N45°42'15"W

N00°42'15"W

N89°17'45"E

S45°42'15"E

S00°42'15"E

N89°17'45"E

S45°42'15"E

S00°42'15"E

N89°17'45"E

S00°42'15"E

S89°17'45"W

S00°42'15"E

S44°17'45"W

S00°42'15"E

S89°17'45"W

N00°42'15"W

S89°17'45"W

N45°42'15"W

N00°42'15"W

LENGTH

12.82'

5.05'

14.11'

7.11'

16.21'

19.04'

3.67'

11.21'

124.08'

17.00'

15.00'

17.00'

469.46'

26.21'

6.92'

15.00'

6.92'

215.32'

46.21'

222.82'

LINE TABLE

NO.

L41

L42

L43

L44

L45

L46

L47

L48

L49

L50

L51

L52

L53

L54

L55

L56

L57

L58

L59

L60

BEARING

S89°17'45"W

N89°17'45"E

N00°42'15"W

S89°17'45"W

N89°17'45"E

N00°42'15"W

S89°17'45"W

S00°42'15"E

N00°42'15"W

S89°17'45"W

S89°17'45"W

S00°42'15"E

N89°17'45"E

S00°42'15"E

S44°17'45"W

S89°17'45"W

N45°42'15"W

N00°42'15"W

N89°17'45"E

N00°42'15"W

LENGTH

7.47'

7.47'

181.30'

7.40'

7.39'

153.20'

126.50'

17.27'

17.27'

419.78'

11.81'

15.00'

11.81'

526.08'

13.79'

266.36'

33.79'

507.61'

44.50'

15.00'

LINE TABLE

NO.

L61

L62

L63

L64

L65

L66

L67

L68

L69

L70

L71

BEARING

S89°17'45"W

N00°42'15"W

S00°42'15"E

N89°17'45"E

S00°41'32"E

N89°17'45"E

S00°42'15"E

S89°17'45"W

N89°17'45"E

S59°52'41"E

N89°17'45"E

LENGTH

44.50'

58.50'

63.00'

10.00'

11.64'

850.97'

54.17'

33.91'

878.15'

19.47'

300.00'

PORTION OF THE 24' MUTUAL ACCESS EASEMENT ABANDONED
BY THIS PLAT (INSTRUMENT NO. 201300020593 OPRDCT)
PORTION OF THE 80' FIRE LANE AND UTILITY EASEMENT
ABANDONED BY THIS PLAT (VOLUME 69143, PAGE 2382 DRDCT)

CURVE TABLE

NO.

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

DELTA

23°25'25"

90°00'00"

90°00'00"

25°50'31"

36°07'40"

90°00'00"

19°56'54"

19°56'54"

9°11'33"

RADIUS

30.00'

30.00'

40.00'

10.00'

6.86'

30.00'

50.00'

50.00'

20.00'

LENGTH

12.26'

47.12'

62.83'

4.51'

4.33'

47.12'

17.41'

17.41'

3.21'

CHORD BEARING

N78°59'33"W

S44°17'45"W

S45°42'15"E

S76°22'30"W

N73°28'08"W

N45°42'15"W

S80°43'48"E

S80°43'48"E

N84°41'59"E

CHORD

12.18'

42.43'

56.57'

4.47'

4.26'

42.43'

17.32'

17.32'

3.21'

OWNER:
KINGS ROAD INDUSTRIAL OWNER, LLC
127 HOWELL ST
DALLAS, TX, 75207
PHONE: 972.489.5570

UTILITY EASEMENT ABANDONED BY THIS PLAT
(INSTRUMENT NO. 201300020593, OPRDCT)

BENJAMIN DYE SURVEY

ABSTRACT NO. 417

REMAINDER OF
LOT 1, BLOCK 1

SEARS INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT NO. 2

VOLUME 78041 PAGE 409
DRDCT

KI
N

G
S 

R
O

AD
VO

LU
M

E 
78

04
1 

PA
G

E 
40

9
D

R
D

C
T

10' ELECTRIC EASEMENT
(LOCATION SHOWN CENTERED ON UTILITY POLES)

VOLUME 78041 PAGE 409
DRDCT

LOT 2, BLOCK 1
E-SYSTEMS GARLAND

INSTRUMENT NO. 201500117024
OPRDCT

LOT 3 BLOCK 1
SEARS-MILLER REPLAT

INSTRUMENT NO. 201300020593
OPRDCT

30
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 L

IN
E

VO
LU

M
E 

78
04

1 
PA

G
E 

40
9

D
R

D
C

T

PART OF
LOT 1, BLOCK 1

SEARS INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT NO. 2

VOLUME 78041 PAGE 409
DRDCT

20' FIRELANE
VOLUME 78041 PAGE 409

DRDCT

25' UTILITY EASEMENT
VOLUME 78041 PAGE 409, DRDCT

30' NO BUILD EASEMENT
INSTRUMENT NO. 201900018962

OPRDCT

 UTILITY EASEMENT
INSTRUMENT NO. 201900018962, OPRDCT

 30' NO BUILD EASEMENT
INSTRUMENT NO. 201900018962

OPRDCT

KI
N

G
S 

R
O

AD
IN

ST
R

U
M

EN
T 

N
O

.
20

20
00

03
52

98
O

PR
D

C
TLOT 3R, BLOCK 1

SEARS-INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT NO. 4 REPLAT
INSTRUMENT NO. 202000035298

OPRDCT

10' ELECTRIC EASEMENT
(LOCATION SHOWN CENTERED ON UTILITY POLES)

VOLUME 69143, PAGE 2382
DRDCT

LOT 2R BLOCK 1
SEARS-MILLER REPLAT

INSTRUMENT NO. 201300020593
OPRDCT

80' FIRELANE AND UTILITY EASEMENT
VOLUME 69143, PAGE 2382, DRDCT

24' MUTUAL ACCESS EASEMENT
INSTRUMENT NO. 201300020593, OPRDCT

10' WATER EASEMENT
VOLUME 69143

PAGE 2382, DRDCT

KI
N

G
S 

R
O

AD

VO
LU

M
E 

80
01

7 
PA

G
E 

68
5

D
R

D
C

T

IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
N

O
. 2

01
30

00
20

59
3

O
PR

D
C

T

20' UTILITY EASEMENT
INSTRUMENT NO. 201300020593

OPRDCT
ABANDONED BY THIS PLAT

15
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
N

O
.

20
13

00
02

05
93

, O
PR

D
C

T
AB

AN
D

O
N

ED
 B

Y 
TH

IS
 P

LA
T

LOT 2R, BLOCK 1
SEARS-INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT NO. 4 REPLAT

INSTRUMENT NO. 202000035298
OPRDCT

LOT 1R, BLOCK 1
SEARS-INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT NO. 4 REPLAT

INSTRUMENT NO. 202000035298
OPRDCT

20' FIRELANE
VOLUME 78041 PAGE 409

DRDCT

1/2" IRON ROD FOUND

POINT OF
BEGINNING
1/2" IRON ROD FOUND

WITH GREEN CAP STAMPED
"CROWLEY RPLS 6484"

GRID NORTHING: 7015123.09
GRID EASTING: 2528262.05

5/8" IRON ROD FOUND

1/2" IRON ROD FOUND
WITH GREEN

CAP STAMPED
"CROWLEY RPLS 6484"

3 1/4" ALUMINUM DISK
FOUND STAMPED
"BURY + PARTNERS
SEARS MILLER"
CONTROLLING
MONUMENT

5/8" IRON ROD FOUND
WITH YELLOW CAP

STAMPED "BURY PA"
CONTROLLING MONUMENT

GRID NORTHING: 7014111.00
GRID EASTING: 2528828.09

1/2" IRON ROD SET
WITH YELLOW CAP
STAMPED
"ypassociates.com"

LOT 3R, BLOCK 1
13.447 ACRES

585,772 SQUARE FEET

KI
N

G
S 

R
O

AD
(V

AR
IA

BL
E 

W
ID

TH
 R

IG
H

T-
O

F-
W

AY
)

ACCESS EASEMENT
BY THIS PLAT

ACCESS EASEMENT
BY THIS PLAT

39' DETENTION AREA
BY THIS PLAT

15' CITY UTILITY EASEMENT
BY THIS PLAT

15' CITY UTILITY EASEMENT
BY THIS PLAT

15' CITY UTILITY EASEMENT
BY THIS PLAT

80' FIRELANE AND UTILITY EASEMENT
VOLUME 69143, PAGE 2382, DRDCT

SOUTHEASTERN FREIGHT
 LINES INC.

INSTRUMENT NUMBER
INSTRUMENT NO. 201500053398

OPRDCT

DETAIL A

80'

40' 40'
80'

40' 30'

10
' S

TR
EE

T 
ES

M
T

36.00'

24.00'

 ±
46

0'
 T

O
M

AR
Q

U
IS

 D
R

IV
E

UNABLE TO SET POINT IN
ELECTRIFIED FENCE

UNABLE TO SET POINT IN
ELECTRIFIED FENCE

83
7.

01
' (

R
EC

O
R

D
) 10.00'

65
7.

12
'

34
8.

04
'

FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION = 600.60'

TRACT 2
KINGS ROAD INDUSTRIAL OWNER, LLC

INSTRUMENT NO. 202400063118
OPRDCT

TRACT 1
KINGS ROAD INDUSTRIAL OWNER, LLC

INSTRUMENT NO. 202400063118
OPRDCT

FIVF-III-TX1 LLC
TRACT 4

INSTRUMENT NO. 2023000107613
OPRDCT

1.07'

ORIGINAL LOT LINE

8.42'

9.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARQUIS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUPITER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACOBSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAVALIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVIDEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHTOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONNECKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARQUIS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUPITER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACOBSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAVALIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVIDEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHTOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONNECKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
63.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
498.03' (RECORD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
63.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARQUIS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUPITER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACOBSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAVALIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVIDEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHTOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONNECKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
L50

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS EASEMENT



GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. a.            
Meeting Date: 07/08/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 24-05 Spiars Engineering (District 7)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of Spiars Engineering, requesting approval of a 1) Change in zoning from Planned
Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) Uses to a Planned Development (PD) District for
Multi-Family-2 (MF-2) District Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a Planned Development (PD) District for Multi-Family-
2 (MF-2) Uses. This property is located at 2200 West Campbell Road. (District 7) (File Z 24-05)

Attachments
Z 24-05 Spiars Engineering Report & Attachments
Z 24-05 Spiars Engineering Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-05/District 7 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: July 8, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of a 1) Change in zoning from Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-
Family Attached (SFA) Uses to a Planned Development (PD) District for Multi-Family-2 (MF-
2) District Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a Planned Development (PD) District for Multi-
Family-2 (MF-2) Uses. 
 
LOCATION 
2200 West Campbell Road 
 
APPLICANT 
Spiars Engineering 
 
OWNER 
Outer Loop Venture 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject site is currently an undeveloped site at the Southeast corner of West Campbell 
Road and North Shiloh Road. In 2022, the site was rezoned from Planned Development (PD) 
District 85-50 for Community Retail (CR) District Uses to Planned Development (PD) District 
22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) Uses. The eastern third of the site is covered in a 
creek, flood plain, and trees, while the rest is covered in grass. 
 
SITE DATA 
The overall site consists of approximately 12.9 acres with approximately 533 lineal feet of 
frontage along North Shiloh Road and 966 feet along West Campbell Road. The Concept 
Plan (Exhibit C) shows one access point along each road. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) 
District and is currently vacant. 
 
The Single-Family Attached district is intended to promote stable, quality, attached-
occupancy residential development on individual lots in logical, livable, and sustainable 
neighborhoods. This district may be included within certain areas of neighborhoods or, when 
in accordance with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, may provide a transition district 
between lower density residential areas, multifamily or nonresidential areas, or major 
thoroughfares. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
1. Front Yard Setback 

 
According to the Garland Development Code (GDC) Chapter 2 Table 20-4, West 
Campbell Road requires a front yard building setback of 20 feet in the Multi-Family-2 
(MF-2) District. The applicant proposes a front yard building setback of 16 feet.  



Page 2 of 3 
 

Decreasing the setback would allow for a more urban style to the development, being 
closer to the street, and allow for more room within the site to provide parking and other 
amenities. 

2. Building Height 

The GDC allows a maximum height of 50 feet for the Multi-Family-2 zoning. The 
applicant is requesting a maximum height of 55 feet for building number five (5) per the 
concept plan. 

It should be noted that the building will present itself as a three (3) story structure from 
the West but will be 55 feet tall due to the grade change the closer the building gets to 
the creek to the East. 

3. Screening and Landscaping 

The GDC requires a five (5) foot tall ornamental metal fence or a six (6) foot tall 
masonry wall to be along the Eastern property line. The applicant proposes no screening 
be required between the site and the Single-Family Attached (SFA) development to the 
East. In addition, the applicant is proposing a six (6)-foot ornamental fence without 
masonry columns to be placed West of the tree line and between buildings four (4) and 
five (5). 

The existing floodplain and heavy tree cover will remain as a natural screen between the 
proposed development and the existing Single-Family Attached property to the East. The 
ornamental fence will provide some security for the proposed development, leave an 
open view of the trees for residents, prevent many trees from being cut down, and not 
block the neighboring property from their view and access to the wooded area and 
creek. 

4. Building Design  

The building design complies with the architectural elements and articulation 
requirements of the GDC. 

5. Signage 

No deviations were requested regarding signage. 

6. Transportation 

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was by the Transportation Department. The submission 
was reviewed and approved by the Transportation Department.  

The applicant will add a Westbound West Campbell Road left turn lane to aid turns South 
onto North Shiloh Road. The applicant will also add an Eastbound West Campbell left 
turn lane to aid turns North onto North Shiloh Road. It should be noted that this turn 
lane was not required to be added by the Transportation Department, but the applicant 
chose to better help traffic flow.  

Finally, a median opening is proposed Southbound on North Shiloh Road to add a left 
turn lane into the site. The site entrance on North Shiloh will also feature two exit lanes 
to allow both left and right turns out of the site. 



Page 3 of 3 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Envision Garland Plan designates the subject property as Urban Neighborhoods 
 
Urban neighborhoods are higher density residential developments. This residential option 
may utilize vertical mixed-use integrated into the surrounding area, reflecting the area’s 
dominant character or, when desired, promoting a new character. 
 
The proposed use is compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The property to the East is Zoned Planned Development (PD) District 05-44 for Single-
Family Attached (SFA) Uses and contains a neighborhood of townhomes. The property to 
the South is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 98-01 for Multi-Family-1 (MF-1) Uses 
and contains an apartment development. The property to the East is a vacant property 
zoned Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) Uses. The 
properties to the North are zoned Planned Development (PD) District 15-35, Planned 
Development (PD) District 03-49, and Planned Development (PD) District 98-28. These 
properties contain a bank, grocery store and shopping center, and a minor automobile 
repair business. 
 
The proposed development is compatible with the surrounding area. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of a 1) Change in zoning from Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-
Family Attached (SFA) Uses to a Planned Development (PD) District for Multi-Family-2 (MF-
2) District Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a Planned Development (PD) District for Multi-
Family-2 (MF-2) Uses. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. PD Conditions 
iii. Concept Plan 
iv. Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 8, 2024 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton                                            Angela Self, FAICP 
Planner II                                                          Interim Director of Planning  
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454 
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 
 
 
  



200920072005N ON O

P D  2 2 - 2 0P D  2 2 - 2 0

P D  0 5 - 4 4P D  0 5 - 4 4

P D  0 6 - 5 8P D  0 6 - 5 8

P D  2 2 - 2 0P D  2 2 - 2 0

P D  9 8 - 0 1P D  9 8 - 0 1

P D  9 2 - 3 0P D  9 2 - 3 0

S  1 1 - 0 6S  1 1 - 0 6

P D  1 6 - 4 6P D  1 6 - 4 6

P D  9 5 - 9P D  9 5 - 9

P D  9 4 - 3 9P D  9 4 - 3 9

P DP D
8 4 - 1 08 4 - 1 0

P D  0 0 - 7 2P D  0 0 - 7 2

P D  8 3 - 5 0P D  8 3 - 5 0

P DP D
8 3 - 5 08 3 - 5 0

P D  8 3 - 5 0P D  8 3 - 5 0

P DP D
0 3 - 4 90 3 - 4 9

P D  9 8 - 2 8P D  9 8 - 2 8

P D  9 7 - 0 4P D  9 7 - 0 4

A GA G

A GA G

P D  1 5 - 3 5P D  1 5 - 3 5

P DP D
1 8 - 0 41 8 - 0 4

P DP D
1 8 - 4 11 8 - 4 1

P D  1 1 - 1 0P D  1 1 - 1 0

P D  1 7 - 3 5P D  1 7 - 3 5

P D  8 5 - 5 0P D  8 5 - 5 0

P D  8 5 - 5 0P D  8 5 - 5 0

C OC O

6210

2013

2141

6206

2017

2133

2117

2137

2009

2125

2109

6318

2001
2245

6310

2129

6322

2021

2003

6314

2121

6214

2029

2105

2101

6213
6215

6217

2001

6303
6305
6307

6309

6311
6313
6401
6403

6405
6407
6409
6411

6501
6503
6505
6507

6509
6511
6513
6601

6603
6605
6607
6609
6611

6312
6314
6402
6404

6406
6408
6410

6506
6508
6510
6512
6514

6602
6604
6606
6608
6610

6309

6401
6403
6405
6407
6409

6501
6503
6505
6507
6509

6601
6605
6607
6609
6611

2201

2301

6219

2302

6850

2200

6619

2313

2321

ZONING MAP Z 24-05
¯

0 200 400 Feet
1 inch = 306 feet

2200 West Campbell Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-05 
 

2200 West Campbell Road 
 

 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development is to approve a multi-family development.  
 
 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption 
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided 
herein. 

 
 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Multi-

Family-2 (MF-2) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of 
the Garland Development Code are included by reference 
and shall apply, except as otherwise specified by this 
ordinance. 
 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 

Concept Plan: Development shall be in general 
conformance with the Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C. In 
the event there is conflict between the approved Concept 
Plan and the Specific Regulations below, the Specific 
Regulations shall apply.  

 
 
V. Specific Conditions: 
  

A. Permitted Uses: Land Uses are only permitted as in the 
Multi-Family-2 (MF-2) District.  
 

B. Concept Plan: The site layout, building placement, 
parking and other development proposed shall be in 
general conformance with the approved Concept Plan 
labeled Exhibit C. 

 
C. Setbacks: The front yard setback along West Campbell 

Road shall be 16 feet. 
 
D. Building Height: Building number five (5), per the 

approved Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C, shall be a 
maximum of 55 feet in height. 

 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-05 
Page - 2 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

E. Landscape Buffer: The landscape buffer along West 
Campbell Road & North Shiloh Road shall be 10 feet. 

 
F. Screening and Landscaping: No screening shall be 

required. 
 

1. Landscaping must be regularly maintained in a 
healthy, growing condition and in compliance with 
this PD Ordinance, the Garland Development Code, 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, 
and the landscaping plan attached hereto at all 
times. The property owner is responsible for 
regular weeding, mowing of grass, irrigation, 
fertilizing, pruning, or other maintenance of all 
plantings as needed. All exposed ground surfaces  
on or within the premises shall be properly 
improved, covered with screening or other 
approved solid material, or protected with a 
vegetative growth that prevents soil erosion and 
ameliorates objectionable dust conditions. 
 

2. Any plant or vegetation that dies must be 
replaced with another approved plant variety that 
complies with the approved landscape plan within 
sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City. In the event the 
property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty  
(60) days after receipt of written notification 
from the City, the City may, in addition to any 
other remedy available by law, withhold future 
city permits, licenses and/or certificates 
requested by the property owner for the premises 
to which such violation applies.  
 

3. Screening and paving must be regularly maintained 
in compliance with this PD Ordinance, the Garland  
Development Code, and the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Garland at all times. The property 
owner is responsible for regular maintenance of 
all screening and paving as needed.  In the event 
the property owner fails to remedy a violation 
of any screening or paving maintenance regulation 
within sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City, the City may, in 
addition to any other remedy available by law, 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-05 
Page - 3 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

withhold future city permits, licenses and/or 
certificates requested by the property owner for 
the premises to which such violation applies. 

 
G. Signage: All signage shall comply with the standards 

in the Garland Development Code. 
 
 
 

 



CONCEPT PLAN

LCG SILOH
IN THE CITY OF GARLAND, DALLAS COUTNY, TEXAS

P.H. RICE SURVEY ABSTRACT NO. 1131241
563,536 Sq. Ft./12.937 Acres (Gross)
554,388 Sq. Ft./12.725 Acres (Net)

S

N

W E

Vicinity  Map

CASE NUMBER - 231102-02

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approx. location 35' Water Line Esmt. 839/1025 DRDCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approx. Location 20' Drainage Esmt. 93023/2571 DRDCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Sanitary Sewer Esmt. AS SHOWN ON 96238/182 DRDCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Sanitary Sewer Esmt. 96238/182 DRDCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approx. location 35' Water Line Esmt. 839/1025 DRDCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approx. Location 20' Drainage Esmt. 93023/2571 DRDCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Sanitary Sewer Esmt. AS SHOWN ON 96238/182 DRDCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Sanitary Sewer Esmt. 96238/182 DRDCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA FIRM Zone X

AutoCAD SHX Text
Housing 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA FIRM Zone AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA FIRM Zone X

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA FIRM Zone AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Club/Leasing

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. Sidewalk 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Housing 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Housing 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Housing 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Housing 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Housing 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
Housing 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. Sidewalk 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Sheet 1 of 1   Scale: 1"=40'   May-24  SEI Job No. 23-242May-24  SEI Job No. 23-242  SEI Job No. 23-24223-242

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER / SURVEYOR/ APPLICANT  / SURVEYOR/ APPLICANT SURVEYOR/ APPLICANT Spiars Engineering, Inc. 501 W. President George Bush Hwy, Suite 200 Richardson, TX 75080 Telephone: (972) 422-0077 TBPE No. F-2121 Contact: David Bond

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER Outer Loop Venture 8150 N. Central Expy Ste 725 Dallas, TX 75206 Telephone: (972) 369-1265 Contact: George Baldwin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plotted by: DBond10 Plot Date: 6/6/2024 4:05 PMDBond10 Plot Date: 6/6/2024 4:05 PM Plot Date: 6/6/2024 4:05 PM6/6/2024 4:05 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawing: G:\2023 JOBS\23-143 LCG Shiloh\CAD\Preliminary\Exhibit.dwg  Saved By: DBond10  Save Time: 6/6/2024    9:20:15 AMG:\2023 JOBS\23-143 LCG Shiloh\CAD\Preliminary\Exhibit.dwg  Saved By: DBond10  Save Time: 6/6/2024    9:20:15 AM  Saved By: DBond10  Save Time: 6/6/2024    9:20:15 AMDBond10  Save Time: 6/6/2024    9:20:15 AM  Save Time: 6/6/2024    9:20:15 AM6/6/2024    9:20:15 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Campbell Road 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Shiloh Road 

AutoCAD SHX Text
President George Bush Turnpike

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project Location

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF-2 Multifamily 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Multifamily Apartments

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.937 Ac. (563,536 Sq. Ft.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Prop. Zoning

AutoCAD SHX Text
Land Use

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot Area

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT 1, BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USYNOPSIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USITE DATA SUMMARY TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. Zoning

AutoCAD SHX Text
PD - Planned Development 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPER Leon Capital Group  3500 Maple Ave, Suite 1600  Dallas, TX 75219 Telephone: (214) 270-1952 Contact: Felix Saenz 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Drives

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Open Space/Landscape Area

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Amenity Space

AutoCAD SHX Text
Floodplain

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed R.O.W. Dedication

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing NTMWD Easement 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Note: Site design and construction plans shall conform to all requirements of the Garland Development Code (GDC), Technical Standards Manual (TSM), and City codes unless an approved PD narrative condition expressly provides otherwise.  The concept plan shall be used to represent the general idea of the proposed land use and site elements.  The concept plan shall not supercede, and shall be suboordinate to, the standards, requirements, and conditions of the GDC, TSM, City Code, or the approved PD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Median Opening



   
 

 

Z 24-05 
 
 

  

View from the subject site looking East down 
West Campbell Road. 

View from the subject site looking North across West 
Campbell Road showing the bank and retail. 

 
 
  

View from the subject site looking West across 
North Shiloh Road. 

View of the subject site looking South from West 
Campbell Road.  























GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. b.            
Meeting Date: 07/08/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 24-12 Spiars Engineering (District 7)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of Spiars Engineering, requesting approval of a Change in Zoning from Planned
Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) Uses to Single-Family Attached (SFA) District.
(District 7) (File Z 24-12)

Attachments
Z 24-12 Spiars Engineering Report & Attachments
Z 24-12 Spiars Engineering Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-12/District 7 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: July 8, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of a Change in Zoning from Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-
Family Attached (SFA) Uses to Single-Family Attached (SFA) District. 
 
LOCATION 
2302 West Campbell Road 
 
APPLICANT 
Spiars Engineering 
 
OWNER 
Outer Loop Venture 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject site is currently an undeveloped site at the Southwest corner of West Campbell 
Road and North Shiloh Road. In 2022, the site was rezoned from Community Office (CO) 
District to Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) Uses.  
 
It should be noted that the Single-Family Attached (SFA) Use is allowed here, but the 
rezoning is to replace the existing Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 conditions that 
do not align with the applicant’s vision for the site. 
 
SITE DATA 
The site is approximately 8.18 acres and will be accessed from West Campbell Road and 
North Shiloh Road.  

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) 
District and is currently vacant. 

The Single-Family Attached district is intended to promote stable, quality, attached-
occupancy residential development on individual lots in logical, livable, and sustainable 
neighborhoods. This district may be included within certain areas of neighborhoods or, when 
in accordance with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, may provide a transition district 
between lower density residential areas, multifamily or nonresidential areas, or major 
thoroughfares. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
 

1. The request is a traditional rezoning without the formation of a Planned Development 
(PD) District. These requests do not require Detail Plan approval to commence or 
direct development. Development is dependent on the standards set forth by the 
Garland Development Code (GDC) and the goals and policies established within the 
Envision Garland 2030 Comprehensive Plan. This Change in Zoning is not intended to 
restrict uses or secure development performances beyond what is permitted within 
the proposed zoning district and the GDC. Accordingly, the GDC requires careful 



Page 2 of 3 
 

consideration as to how closely the proposed district follows the policies of the 
Envision Garland 2030 Comprehensive Plan, and to what degree the rezoning will 
affect surrounding and future development. 
 

2. The Single-Family Attached district is intended to promote stable, quality, attached-
occupancy residential development on individual lots in logical, livable, and 
sustainable neighborhoods. This district may be included within certain areas of 
neighborhoods or, when in accordance with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, 
may provide a transition district between lower density residential areas, multifamily 
or nonresidential areas, or major thoroughfares. 
 

3. In the event the Zoning Change request is approved, the applicant will need to 
proceed with the platting of the subject property and securing a site permit and a 
building permit prior to commencing construction. It will be during the permitting 
process that staff will review the proposed development and verify compliance with 
all the applicable regulations. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan designates this property as Compact 
Neighborhoods. 
 
Compact neighborhoods provide areas for moderate increases in residential density, 
including single-family attached and single-family detached housing. It expands housing 
options through infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable development patterns. 
These areas provide transitions between traditional residential neighborhoods and higher 
density residential neighborhoods and non-residential developments. These areas 
accommodate uses such as convenience retail (goods and services), office space, and public 
services. The architectural character and scale of these areas are compatible with adjacent 
residential development. 
 
The proposed zoning is generally compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The property to the South is zoned Agricultural (AG) District and is a public park owned by 
the City of Garland. The property to the East is also zoned Planned Development (PD) 
District 22-20 for Single-Family Attached (SFA) Uses. The properties to the North are zoned 
Planned Development (PD) District 16-46 for Neighborhood Office (NO) Uses, Planned 
Development (PD) 84-10 for Single-Family-5 (SF-5) Uses, and Planned Development (PD) 
District 83-50 for Mixed Uses. These properties contain a rehabilitation center and single-
family detached houses. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of a Change in Zoning from Planned Development (PD) District 22-20 for Single-
Family Attached (SFA) Uses to Single-Family Attached (SFA) District. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. Photos 
 
 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 8, 2024 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Angela Self, FAICP 
Planner II Interim Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov   

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


6201

6110

671367056701
6717

EAG
LE N

EST D
R

N
 S

H
IL

O
H

 R
D

HAZELWOOD DR

SH
O

AL
 C

R
EE

K 
TR

L

OSPREY LN

PH
ILL

IP
S 

DR

CARYATRL

HAZELWOOD PL

STARLING
POINTE

BIG SPRINGS RD

W CAMPBELL RD

HERON LN

SHATTUCKDR

FR
AN

CIS
CO D

R

C
AL

LE
JO

 R
D

W
IL

D
LI

FE
 T

R
L

PA
R

TR
ID

G
E 

PL

C
LE

AR
 S

PR
IN

G
S 

C
IR

P DP D
0 1 - 3 30 1 - 3 3

N ON O

P D  2 2 - 2 0P D  2 2 - 2 0

P D  0 5 - 4 4P D  0 5 - 4 4

P D  2 2 - 2 0P D  2 2 - 2 0

P D  9 8 - 0 1P D  9 8 - 0 1

P D  9 2 - 3 0P D  9 2 - 3 0
S  1 1 - 0 6S  1 1 - 0 6

P D  1 6 - 4 6P D  1 6 - 4 6

P D  8 4 - 1 0P D  8 4 - 1 0

P D  8 3 - 5 0P D  8 3 - 5 0
P D  0 3 - 4 9P D  0 3 - 4 9

P D  9 8 - 2 8P D  9 8 - 2 8

P D  9 7 - 0 4P D  9 7 - 0 4

S F - 7S F - 7

A GA G

P D  1 3 - 2 2P D  1 3 - 2 2

P DP D
0 0 - 4 00 0 - 4 0

P D  1 5 - 3 5P D  1 5 - 3 5

A GA G

P D  1 1 - 1 0P D  1 1 - 1 0

P D  8 5 - 5 0P D  8 5 - 5 0

P D  8 5 - 5 0P D  8 5 - 5 0
C OC O

6721
6725

6210

6126

6534

6206

6118

6202

6110

6306

6714

6120
6134

6218

6122

6102

6318

2245

6302

6130

6718

6310

6322

6314

6138

6106

6214

6114

6200

2201

2301

2302

6850

2200

6201

2402

2313

2321

ZONING MAP Z 24-12
¯

0 210 420 Feet
1 inch = 318 feet

2302 West Campbell Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



   
 

 

        Z 24-12 
 

  

View of the proposed site looking West from N Shiloh 
Road. 
  

Looking East from the site across N Shiloh Road. 

 
 
 

 

View looking North and East from W Campbell Road Looking South down N Shiloh Road. 









GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. d.            
Meeting Date: 07/08/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 24-19 Triangle Engineering (District 1)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of Triangle Engineering, requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned
Development (PD) District 04-45 for Community Retail Uses, 2) a Specific Use Provision for a Day Care, Youth --
Licensed Child-Care Center Use on a property zoned Planned Development (PD) District 04-45 and 3) a Detail Plan
for a Day Care, Youth -- Licensed Child-Care Center Use. This property is located at 4802 North President George
Bush Turnpike. (District 1) (File Z 24-19)

Attachments
Z 24-19 Triangle Engineering Report & Attachments
Z 24-19 Triangle Engineering Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-19/District 1 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: July 8, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 04-45 for Community 
Retail Uses, 2) a Specific Use Provision for a Day Care, Youth – Licensed Child-Care Center 
Use on a property zoned Planned Development (PD) District 04-45 and 3) a Detail Plan for a 
Day Care, Youth – Licensed Child-Care Center Use. 
 
LOCATION 
4802 North President George Bush Turnpike 
 
APPLICANT 
Triangle Engineering 
 
OWNER 
C&M Villarreal FLP 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property us currently unimproved. The applicant proposes to open a Day Care, 
Youth – Licensed Child-Care Center. While the GDC does not require a Specific Use Provision 
for a Day Care, Youth - Licensed Child-Care Center in the Community Retail (CR) District, 
the Planned Development (PD) District 04-45 states that a “Kindergarten, Preschool or Child 
Care Center” is only allowed by Specific Use Provision (SUP). 

SITE DATA 
The subject property contains approximately 1.50 acres and has approximately 164.50 
linear feet of frontage along North President George Bush Turnpike. The site can be 
accessed from a mutual access drive along North President George Bush Turnpike only. 
There will be no direct access from the neighborhood to the North. 

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The Community Retail (CR) District is intended to accommodate a variety of retail, service, 
and business establishments that may or may not be designed in a shopping center 
configuration. The district may be used as a transition district between lower intensity retail 
or office uses and more intense uses. A Community Retail (CR) District is generally 
appropriate along major transportation corridors but is generally not appropriate in 
proximity to low-density residential districts without significant buffering and screening 
features. An example of allowed use in a CR district is a retail shopping area that may be 
large in scale with very limited or no outside storage. Traffic generated by uses in a 
Community Retail (CR) District must be focused onto the major thoroughfare network. 
Development in a Community Retail (CR) District may not be designed in a manner that 
increases traffic through residential areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
 
Specific Use Provision:  
   
1. The applicant proposes to construct a 10,778 square foot day care. 

 
2. The applicant is requesting the SUP to be indefinite, while the day care is in operation. 

The request being due to this use being allowed by right in straight zoned Community 
Retail (CR) District. 

 
3. The site plan (Exhibit C) complies with the parking requirements per the GDC. 

4. The landscape layout (Exhibit D) complies with the screening and landscaping standards 
per the GDC. 

5. The building elevations (Exhibit E) complies with the building design standards per the 
Garland Development Code (GDC). 

6. The applicant is not requesting any signage deviations with this request. 

Traffic: 

1. The transportation department concluded, through a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA), that 
the day care will “generate some traffic” that will use the residential streets, River Cove 
Drive & River Oaks Parkway. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Community Centers for 
the subject site. Community centers are areas with compact development, primarily non-
residential, serving a collection of neighborhoods. This type of development consists of a 
mix of uses, including retail, services, office use, multi-family residential, and 
entertainment. 
 
The proposed use is compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the North are zoned Planned Development (PD) District 94-12 & Planned 
Development (PD) District 86-83/87-43. These districts being for Single-Family Detached 
housing and a golf course. The properties to the West are zoned Planned Development (PD) 
District 15-09, Planned Development (PD) District 03-39, & Planned Development (PD) 
District 06-80, all for Community Retail (CR) Uses. These districts contain a dental clinic and 
multiple restaurants. The property to the East is Planned Development (PD) District 00-39, 
which lies vacant and is for Community Retail uses. To the South lies the President George 
Bush Turnpike. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 04-45 for Community 
Retail Uses, 2) a Specific Use Provision for a Day Care, Youth – Licensed Child-Care Center 
Use on a property zoned Planned Development (PD) District 04-45 and 3) a Detail Plan for a 
Day Care, Youth – Licensed Child-Care Center Use. 
 
However, the Planning Department also recommends that a shorter Specific use Provision 
(SUP) be given, due to concerns about traffic. 



Page 3 of 3 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. PD & SUP Conditions 
iii. Exhibits 
iv. Photos 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: August 6, 2024 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Angela Self, FAICP 
Planner II Interim Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov   

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


E BRAND R
D

THUNDERBROOK

RD

SANDESTIN

CT

SH
O

RT
 L

N

RIVERCOVE D
R

FA
IR

WAY M
EADOWS D

R

SA
W

G
R

AS
S

C
T

E MUIRFIELD RD

FIREHILLSAVE

NAAMAN FOREST BLVD

BELLERIVE
CT

FAIRWAY LAKES DR

TURTLE COVE RD

SA
W

G
R

AS
S 

D
R

RIVER OAKS PKWY

ELL
IO

TT AVE

RANGER D
R

FA
IRWAY

LA
KES CT

SADDLE
BROOK D

R

WOOD CREEK LN

PALM DESERT DR

BALTUSROL CIR

N GEORGE BUSH

SERVICE RD W

N GEORGE BUSH HWY E

N GEORGE

BUSH ON W

N GEORGE BUSH OFF E

N GEORGE BUSH HWY W

N GEORGE BUSH

SERVICE RD E

P DP D
0 7 - 3 60 7 - 3 6

P D  0 6 - 8 0P D  0 6 - 8 0

P DP D
0 8 - 1 50 8 - 1 5

S  0 5 - 6 1S  0 5 - 6 1

P DP D
1 6 - 3 91 6 - 3 9

S  0 7 - 6 5S  0 7 - 6 5

P D  9 7 - 0 9P D  9 7 - 0 9

P D  8 2 - 1 1 5P D  8 2 - 1 1 5

P DP D
1 6 - 0 51 6 - 0 5

P D  0 4 - 4 5P D  0 4 - 4 5
N ON O

P DP D
0 3 - 3 90 3 - 3 9

P D  0 0 - 3 9P D  0 0 - 3 9

P DP D
0 7 - 2 70 7 - 2 7

C RC R

P D  9 2 - 2 0P D  9 2 - 2 0

P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3

P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3

P D  9 4 - 1 2P D  9 4 - 1 2S F - 7S F - 7

P D  9 4 - 1 2P D  9 4 - 1 2

P D  2 3 - 1 7P D  2 3 - 1 7

P D  8 7 - 1P D  8 7 - 1

A GA G A GA G

P DP D
1 5 - 0 91 5 - 0 9

P D  1 8 - 2 9P D  1 8 - 2 9

P D  0 7 - 4 6P D  0 7 - 4 6

502

209

501

502

5001

202

214

206

4902

218

5005
210

4840

4880

4885

500

550

4400

4802

ZONING MAP Z 24-19
¯

0 270 540 Feet
1 inch = 408 feet

4802 North President George Bush Turnpike
INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-19 
 

4802 North President George Bush Turnpike 
 

 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development (PD) is to allow and regulate the 
development of a Day Care, Youth – Licensed Child-Care 
Center Use. 

 
 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption 
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided 
herein. 

 
 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Community 

Retail (CR) District and Planned Development (PD) 
District 04-45 as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included by 
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise specified 
by this ordinance. 
 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 

Detail Plan: Development is to be in conformance with 
the approved Detail Plan labeled Exhibit C.  In the event 
of conflict between the conditions and Detail Plan, the 
conditions listed below are to apply. 

 
 
V. Detail Plan: 
 

A. Site Layout: The site shall be in conformance to the 
site layout reflected on Exhibit C.  
 

B. Screening and Landscaping: Screening and landscaping 
shall be in conformance to the layout reflected on 
Exhibit D. 
 

C. Building Elevations: Building elevations shall be in 
conformance to the elevations as approved on Exhibit E. 
 

 
 
 
 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-19 
Page - 2 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-19 
 

4802 North President George Bush Turnpike 
 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific Use 

Provision is to allow a Day Care, Youth – Licensed Child-
Care Center Use. 

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision shall 

not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 

 
III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the Community 

Retail (CR) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of the 
Garland Development Code Ordinance 6773, are included by 
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise specified 
by this ordinance. 
 

IV. Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this 
Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date of 
this SUP; 
 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-19 
Page - 3 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

 
F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a primary 

or secondary use, that is not allowed within the PD 
District, by the GDC, or by state or federal law. 

 
The termination of utilities on the premises for a period 
of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to prove 
that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
 

V. Specific Regulations:   
 

Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall have an 
indefinite time period. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



EX
H

IBIT C



EX
H

IBIT D



EX
H

IBIT E



   
 

 

Z 24-19 
 
 

  

View from the subject site looking 
North from the PGBT. 

View from the subject site looking West down the PGBT. 

 
 
 

 

View from the subject site looking 
East down River Oaks Parkway. 

View of the subject site looking East from the site.  







GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. e.            
Meeting Date: 07/08/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 24-25 ZoneDev on behalf of StoneHawk Capital (District 3)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of ZoneDev on behalf of StoneHawk Capital , requesting approval of 1) an
amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 18-20 for Mixed Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for Multi-Family-2
(MF-2) Uses. This property is located at 121 & 151 East I-30. (District 3) (File Z 24-25)

Attachments
Z 24-25 ZoneDev on behalf of StoneHawk Capital Report & Attachments
Z 24-25 ZoneDev on behalf of StoneHawk Capital Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-25/District 3 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: July 8, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of a 1) An amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 18-20 for Mixed Uses 
and 2) a Concept Plan for Multi-Family-2 (MF-2) Uses. 
 
LOCATION 
121 & 151 East I-30 
 
APPLICANT 
ZoneDev on behalf of StoneHawk Capital 
 
OWNER 
Archworkx Holdings LLC 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject site is currently an undeveloped site at the Southeast corner of Rosehill Road 
and Bobtown Road, adjacent to I-30 to the South. In 2018, the site was rezoned from 
Urban Business (UB) District to Planned Development (PD) District 18-20 for a mix of 
Single-Family and Urban-style Multi-Family residential along with supportive commercial 
uses. Within the PD 18-20, four (4) sub-districts were created. 121 & 151 East I-30 Road 
falls within sub-districts two (2) and three (3). While sub-district three (3) allows the 
“Dwelling, Urban-Style Multi-Family” Use, sub-district two (2) does not. In order to allow the 
property to develop multi-family, sub-district three (3) will be expanded. All parts of the 
subject property that lie within sub-district two (2) shall become sub-district (3). All 
regulations from sub-district (3) will apply to the subject property. 
 
The applicant is also proposing a new public road through the North portion of the subject 
property. The new thoroughfare, Thackery Road, shall be a 50-foot Right-of-Way. Extended 
from the currently dedicated area by the proposed development to the Northwest of the 
subject property, Thackery Road will curve to the North and go straight East allowing the 
property to the East to easily develop and be tied in with the subject property and overall 
development. 
 
SITE DATA 
The overall site consists of approximately 8.5 acres with approximately 415 lineal feet of 
frontage along East I-30 and 530 feet along the proposed Thackery Road. The Concept Plan 
(Exhibit C) shows the main entry to the site being along Thackery Road, with an additional 
exit onto Thackery Road. While the subject property does have frontage along East I-30, a 
proposed detention pond and landscaping will front it as opposed to multi-family 
development. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 18-20 for Mixed Uses and is currently 
vacant. 
 
Sub-District three (3) has a mix of permitted land uses that are intended to focus on a 
mixture of residential and nonresidential uses in a pedestrian-friendly environment. This 



Page 2 of 4 
 
sub-district shall incorporate high density residential and mixed-use projects along with 
office, retail, and other uses. The core area of this district shall serve those living in the 
community as well as for the convenience of those traveling along the freeway. 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
1. Density 

 
According to Planned Development (PD) District 18-20 Sub-District three (3), the 
maximum units per acre allowed is 30. The applicant is requesting 36 units per acre in 
order to make the development more urban, per the ordinance’s intent. The applicant 
also noted that the addition of a detention pond lowers the amount of land to build on. 

The Garland Development Code (GDC) Chapter 2 Table 2-4, states that the Multi-
Family-2 (MF-2) District allows a maximum unit density of 32 units per acre. This 
number is higher than the current zoning allows, though the intent was to be more 
urban. At the time of the passing of Planned Development (PD) District 18-20, the 
maximum units per acre allowed was 18 for the existing Multi-Family (MF) District. 

The proposal requests an additional four (4) units per acre more than the GDC allows; 
however, allowing a higher density would better promote an urban style development, 
per the existing ordinance’s intent. 

2. Minimum Dwelling Unit Area 

According to Planned Development (PD) District 18-20 Sub-District three (3), the 
minimum dwelling unit size for a one-bedroom is 700 square feet. The applicant is 
requesting thirty-five (35) units have a minimum dwelling unit size of 627 square feet.  

The GDC requires a minimum dwelling unit size of 650 square feet, which is lower than 
the existing ordinance on the subject property. 

The decrease to 627 square feet offers affordability and expands options for those who 
may prefer a smaller home. 

3. Carports 

According to Planned Development (PD) District 18-20 “Nonresidential and Urban-style 
Multi-Family Development” section, carports must generally match the roof of the main 
structure and be supported with decorative columns or columns encased in a masonry 
material at the base, to at least three feet above grade. Above the masonry base, a 
durable material must coat to match the color of the main structure. 

While carports are no longer required per the GDC, nor by the existing ordinance, the 
applicant requests that the requirement of a masonry base and all decorative design be 
removed. The adding of a masonry base and other additional design elements conflict 
with space to park and can cause damage to automobiles. 

4. Carport Location 

According to the Garland Development Code (GDC), carports may not encroach into the 
side setbacks. The applicant requests allowing carports to encroach into side yards that 
are not adjacent to a public street. 



Page 3 of 4 
 
5. Parking 

On-street parking is currently not allowed along a public road. The applicant is 
requesting parking in the Thackery Right-Of-Way to align more with the desired urban 
design. 

According to the Garland Development Code (GDC), a parking ratio of 1.5 spaces for 
every one (1) bed unit and 2 spaces per every two (2) bed unit is required. The 
applicant is requesting a parking ratio of 1.4 spaces/1-bed and 1.9 spaces/2-bed with 
on-street parking being allowed to count toward the requirement. The applicant states 
that the allowed parking regulations will align more with demand and promote urban 
design. 

6. Screening and Landscaping 

The GDC requires 40% of the site to be devoted to landscaping, open space, pools, and 
other outdoor recreational activity areas. The applicant is requesting 32% of the site be 
devoted to such use.  

A privately-owned, publicly accessible pocket park is being proposed on the other side of 
Thackery Road, to give residents an urban park to use to their desire. While this kind of 
amenity is a more useful allocation of greenspace, it does not meet the intent of the 
GDC landscaping requirement. Due to this, the pocket park does not contribute to the 
overall percentage of landscaping, but if it were included in the calculation the site would 
meet the minimum with 42% of the land being devoted to landscaping, open space, 
pools, and other outdoor recreational activity. 

According to the GDC, a 15-foot landscape buffer is required along the proposed 
Thackery Road. Large canopy trees are required for every 30 lineal feet of frontage. The 
applicant is requesting one large canopy tree for every 45 lineal feet of on-street parking 
frontage. This will be commensurate with an urban streetscape. 

7. Signage 

According to GDC, Article 5 blade signs are allotted a maximum of four (4) square feet    
when suspended beneath a ground-level canopy or awning or attached to a building on 
the ground-level facade. In addition, the blade sign may be no larger than eight (8) 
square feet when attached to the building’s second or higher story. The applicant is 
requesting a maximum of forty (40) square feet for a projecting blade sign. The 
explanation being that it will be commensurate with the urban development. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Envision Garland Plan designates the subject property as Business Centers. 
 
Business centers provide a cluster of business offices and/or low impact industry, including 
campus-type development, that cumulatively employ large numbers of people. Operations 
within this development type occur internal to buildings resulting in minimal negative 
impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, storage, etc.) and are compatible with adjacent 
development types in architecture, character, scale, and intensity. Business centers are 
generally located at intersections of major and/or secondary arterial streets or significant 
transit areas (bus/rail). Proximity and access to residential areas are encouraged to reduce 
travel times to employment. Site design addresses function and visual aesthetics providing 
appropriate buffering at gateway corridors, between adjacent developments, and for 
residential neighborhoods. 



Page 4 of 4 
 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The property is within the city initiated Planned Development (PD) District 18-20, where the 
Rosehill Road and Bobtown Road intersection was rezoned to promote the development of 
diverse housing stock and commercial use. Townhomes are also proposed to the North and 
Northwest. Much of the property was already within a sub-district within the Planned 
development (PD) District which allowed apartment development by right. 
 
The proposed development is compatible with the surrounding area. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of a 1) An amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 18-20 for Mixed Uses 
and 2) a Concept Plan for Multi-Family-2 (MF-2) Uses. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. PD Conditions 
iii. Concept Plan 
iv. Photos 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 8, 2024 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton                                            Angela Self, FAICP 
Planner II                                                          Interim Director of Planning  
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454 
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 
 
 
  



R
O

SE
H

IL
L 

R
D

THACKERY RD

SA
R

AS
O

TA
D

RD
AY

TO
N

A
D

R

W I30

FRWY

G
R

AN
ITE

TR
L

SA
N

D
ST

O
N

E 
D

R

E I30 SERVICE RD N

E I30 FRWY
E I30 FRWY

SONGBIRD LN

JASPER TRL

WHITETAIL LN

E I30 SERVICE RD S

PR
O

SP
ER

IT
Y 

D
R

R
O

SEH
ILL R

D
 O

N
 R

AM
P N

OAKS TRL

E I30 ON N

E I30 ROAN OFF S

E I30 ROSEHILL OFF N

E I30 ROSEHILL ON S

BOBTOWN RD

S  9 3 - 3 9S  9 3 - 3 9

S  9 9 - 1 1S  9 9 - 1 1

S  0 7 - 3 2S  0 7 - 3 2

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

P DP D
9 4 - 4 19 4 - 4 1

P D  1 4 - 4 2P D  1 4 - 4 2A GA G

A GA G

C OC O

P D  1 8 - 2 0P D  1 8 - 2 0

P D  2 1 - 5 2P D  2 1 - 5 2

C OC O

P D / S  2 2 - 7 8P D / S  2 2 - 7 8

3522

3402

3510

3630

3518

3634

325

3542

317

305

329

245

3526

3614
3530

3610

257

313

241

3618

321

309

3506

273

36263622

175

3514

235

3602

339

3538

253

335

3606

200

195

3230

261

269

3534

3426

3406

3410 3414
3418

3422
3430

111

121

151

5502

5450

5460

251

281

3400

3434

3454
3438

3442

3446

3450

5440

54445448

54525456

54605464

54685472

54765480

5484
5488 5492

3052
3048

3044
3040

30363032

3028
3024
3020

3016
3012

3056

3047
3043 3039
3035

3031
3027

3023
3019

3044
3040

30363032
3028

ZONING MAP Z 24-25
¯

0 210 420 Feet
1 inch = 318 feet

121 and 151 East Interstate 30 Freeway

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-25 
 

121 & 151 East I-30 
 

 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development is to approve a multi-family development.  
 
 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption 
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided 
herein. 

 
 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Multi-

Family-2 (MF-2) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of 
the Garland Development Code are included by reference 
and shall apply, except as otherwise specified by this 
ordinance. 
 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 

Concept Plan: Development shall be in general 
conformance with the Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C. In 
the event there is conflict between the approved Concept 
and the Specific Regulations below, the Specific 
Regulations shall apply.  

 
 
V. Specific Conditions: 
  

A. Permitted Uses: Land Uses are only permitted as in the 
Multi-Family-2 (MF-2) District.  
 

B. Concept Plan: The site layout, building placement, 
parking and other development proposed shall be in 
general conformance with the approved Concept Plan 
labeled Exhibit C. 
 

C. Density: The maximum permitted density shall be 
approximately thirty-six (36) units per acre. 

 
D. Parking: The parking ratio will be 1.4 spaces/1-bed 

and 1.9 spaces/2-bed, including on-street parking. 
 

 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-25 
Page - 2 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

E. Carports: No carport requirements from Planned 
Development (PD) 18-20 shall apply to this 
development. 

 
F. Setbacks: Carports may encroach into side yard 

setbacks that are not adjacent to a public street. 
 
G. Dwelling Units: Thirty-five (35) dwelling units shall 

have a minimum dwelling unit size of 627 square feet. 
 

H. Landscape Buffer: A large canopy tree shall be 
required every 45 lineal feet. 

 
I. Screening and Landscaping: Thirty-two (32) percent of 

the site shall be devoted to landscaping, open space, 
pools, and other outdoor recreational activities. In 
addition, a privately-owned, publicly accessible 
pocket park will be provided, per the approved Concept 
Plan. 

 
1. Landscaping must be regularly maintained in a 

healthy, growing condition and in compliance with 
this PD Ordinance, the Garland Development Code, 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, 
and the landscaping plan attached hereto at all 
times. The property owner is responsible for 
regular weeding, mowing of grass, irrigation, 
fertilizing, pruning, or other maintenance of all 
plantings as needed. All exposed ground surfaces  
on or within the premises shall be properly 
improved, covered with screening or other 
approved solid material, or protected with a 
vegetative growth that prevents soil erosion and 
ameliorates objectionable dust conditions. 
 

2. Any plant or vegetation that dies must be 
replaced with another approved plant variety that 
complies with the approved landscape plan within 
sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City. In the event the 
property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty  
(60) days after receipt of written notification 
from the City, the City may, in addition to any 
other remedy available by law, withhold future 
city permits, licenses and/or certificates 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-25 
Page - 3 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

requested by the property owner for the premises 
to which such violation applies.  
 

3. Screening and paving must be regularly maintained 
in compliance with this PD Ordinance, the Garland  
Development Code, and the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Garland at all times. The property 
owner is responsible for regular maintenance of 
all screening and paving as needed.  In the event 
the property owner fails to remedy a violation 
of any screening or paving maintenance regulation 
within sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City, the City may, in 
addition to any other remedy available by law, 
withhold future city permits, licenses and/or 
certificates requested by the property owner for 
the premises to which such violation applies. 

 
J. Signage: Blade signs shall be allowed a maximum of 

forty (40) square feet. 
 
 
 

 





   
 

 

Z 24-25 
 
 

 

 

View of the subject site looking North from 
East I-30. 

View from the subject site looking West down the 
East I-30 Service Road. 

 
 

 

View from the adjacent site looking South 
down Rosehill Road toward I-30. 

View of the subject site, zoomed in, looking East 
from Rosehill Road. 











GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. f.             
Meeting Date: 07/08/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 24-26 R-Delta Engineers, Inc. (District 2)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of R-Delta Engineers, Inc. , requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned
Development (PD) District 85-62 for Industrial and Community Retail Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a Lineman
Training & Bulk Materials Storage. This property is located at 2701 East Centerville Road. (District 2) (File Z 24-
26) (THIS ITEM HAS BEEN POSTPONED).

Attachments
Z 24-26 R-Delta Engineers, Inc. Report & Attachments
Z 24-26 R-Delta Engineers, Inc. Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-26/District 2 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: July 8, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 85-62 for Industrial 
and Community Retail Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a Lineman Training & Bulk Materials 
Storage. 
 
LOCATION 
2701 East Centerville Road 
 
APPLICANT 
R-Delta Engineers, Inc. 
 
OWNER 
City of Garland 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is currently a vacant lot largely covered by trees, flood plain, and 
containing GP&L power line infrastructure. The applicant intends to utilize 1.57 acres for a 
lineman training site, running an access road from Davidson Drive into the interior of the 
site. Also planned is a hydrovac spoils & material storage area, accessed from East 
Centerville Road. A Planned Development (PD) Amendment is needed because the Lineman 
Training Use does not exist in the Garland Development Code (GDC) nor Planned 
Development (PD) District 85-62. In addition, “Bulk Materials Storage” is proposed as the 
closest definition, “Bulk Materials Sales & Storage” includes the sale of materials, which will 
not be taking place. In addition, “Outside Storage, Used/New Materials” do nor properly 
define what will be stored on the site (sand, dirt, and temporarily hydrovac spoils). 
 
SITE DATA 
The subject property contains approximately 54.9877 acres in area. The site will be 
accessed from Davidson Drive and East Centerville Road. Of the total acreage, 1.57 acres 
will be used for the lineman training area and 1.2 acres will be used for the hydrovac spoils 
& material storage area. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The purpose of Planned Development (PD) District 85-62 for Industrial & Community Retail 
Uses is to allow a large range of specific industrial and commercial uses. 
 
The GDC does not have a defined land use for lineman training nor just a site for storing 
bulk/raw materials. Typically, stored bulk materials are either sold, part of a contractor’s 
site, or seen as an accessory use to a larger business/site. Since GP&L plans on using the 
site simply to store bulk materials, a new use was made within Planned Development (PD) 
District 85-62. 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
 

1. Site & Land Use 
The site will be used to create a 1.57-acre lineman training area, as well as a 
separate 1.2-acre hydrovac spoils & material storage area. No structures are 
proposed on the site. 
 

2. Landscaping & Screening 
A 10-foot-wide landscape buffer is proposed along East Centerville Road and will 
comply with Garland Development Code (GDC) standards. In addition, a five (5)-foot 
tall, coated chain link fence with a six (6)-foot minimum tall, continuous, and opaque 
living screen of evergreen shrubs from the Garland Development Code (GDC) will be 
implemented. 
 

3. Floodplain 
All proposed improvements lie outside of the floodplain, despite most of the site 
falling within the 1-percent exceedance floodplain. 
 

4. Signage 
No freestanding signage is proposed. Signage will be mounted on the gates at the 
two access roads. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Parks and Open Space 
in this General Area. Public Parks and Open Space areas include the vast array of park, 
recreation, and open space lands. This can range from small neighborhood playgrounds to 
community parks with outdoor picnic areas, hike and bike trails, and play fields and tennis 
courts to community recreation centers with swimming pools or indoor gymnasiums; as well 
as natural areas and floodplains. Provision for transportation options encourages residents 
to move throughout their neighborhood for mobility, recreational, social, and health 
purposes. This should include a network of interconnected roads, sidewalks, pathways, and 
transit connections to neighborhoods, schools, retails centers, and other area destinations. 
 
Development of GP&L training and storage facilities on the subject property does not 
preclude future parks and open space opportunities in this general area.  

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The subject property is entirely within Planned Development (PD) District 85-62, which is 
vacant outside of heavy tree, floodplain, and GP&L electric transmission line coverage. The 
property is bordered to the North by a railroad which separates it from other City of Garland 
facilities zoned Industrial (IN) District. To the south lies Planned Development (PD) District 
86-5, as well as Planned Development (PD) District 00-19. The former being for similar uses 
being a floodplain property, and the latter being for single-family homes. Though it should 
be noted that woods and floodplain separate the actual development from the property line 
of the subject site. To the West, the property is zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District with a 
Specific Use Provision 09-30 for a Child Care Center tied to New Safe Haven Church. 
However, the church was not constructed, and the lot is vacant. To the East and across East 
Centerville Road, the site is zoned Agricultural (AG) District and contains a water treatment 
plant as well as vacant land. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 85-62 for Industrial & 
Community Retail Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a Lineman Training & Bulk Materials 
Storage. 



Page 3 of 3 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Location Map 
PD Conditions 
Location Map 
Photos 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: August 6, 2024 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Angela Self, FAICP 
Development Planner Interim Director of Planning 
Planning & Development 
(972) 205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 



MODANO

DR

S
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y
 C

LU
B

 R
D

 W

S
W

A
N

 D
R

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 D

R

LYRIC CIR

M
ILL S

P
R

IN
G

 D
R

D
O

VE
 D

R

BARD CT

M
IL

L
W

O
O

D L
N

BEVERLY
DR

HAWK
CT

THRUSH CT LO
R

E
 W

Y

FALCON CT

MILL CROSSING

HIGH MEADOW DR

PELICAN
CT

R
U

S
T

IC
 LN

QUAIL DR MESA CT

S
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y
 C

LU
B

 R
D

 E

B
A

R
D

D
R

REGAL DR

Q
U

A
IL

H
IL

L
C

IR
GASOLINE ALLEY

O
N

-L
IN

E
R

O
W

SOUTH

CREEK DR

T
O

W
E

R
 S

T

NOVEL CT

M
ILLS

 R
D

CROSS COURTS DR

EAGLE PASS

NOVEL PL

W
H

IP
P

O
O

R
W

ILL

D
R

HIG
H M

EADOW CIR

M
C

C
O

R
M

IC
K

S
T

RUSTIC

CREEK DR

M
A

C
K

E
Y

 S
T

NOVEL DR

GARRISON WY

TIMBER OAKS DR

E
 C

E
N

T
E

R
V

IL
LE

 R
D

NOVEL C
IR

LY
R

IC
 D

R

P
IL

O
T

 W
Y

EASTVIEW DR

LE
G

E
N

D
 D

R

P D
8 2 - 4 3

P D
8 2 - 4 3

C RC RP D
8 3 - 5 4

P D
8 3 - 5 4

P D  8 6 - 5 4P D  8 6 - 5 4

P D  8 6 - 9 0P D  8 6 - 9 0

S F - 7S F - 7

I NI N

P D  1 5 - 1 2P D  1 5 - 1 2

P D  0 3 - 6 3P D  0 3 - 6 3

C RC R

P D
0 6 - 1 0

P D
0 6 - 1 0

P D  8 6 - 5P D  8 6 - 5

P D  8 6 - 9 0P D  8 6 - 9 0

P D  8 6 - 5 4P D  8 6 - 5 4

P D  8 5 - 6 2P D  8 5 - 6 2

A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

S  0 9 - 1 8S  0 9 - 1 8

P D
0 1 - 1 7

P D
0 1 - 1 7

1917

1905

1002 1809

1921

1962

1770

1730

1965

111
0

11
21

1929

1801

1925

1750

1521

11
05

1529

111
01533

1969

1970

1014

11
05

1720

1945

11
01

1966

601

11
01

1973

1974

1909

11
02

600

111
3

1018

1005

702

11
09

1760

1949

740

1946

1006

1901

1954

1817

1933

1913

1009

111
7

1722

610

1813

1821

1961

1950

11
06

1010

1953

111
4

1537

1805

111
4

1958

111
3

11
02

11
02

1201

1210 1957

2500

1001

1202

725

1525

1735

2214

1941

1401

1599

2650

2370

2350

2701

2201

23312000

2798

3601

2404

2414
2428

2434

2448

2468
2474

2454

2488

530

2109

2105
211

3
211

7

2121
2125

2129
2133

2137
2141

2104
2108

211
2
211

6

2120
2124

2128

1705
1709

1713
1717

1721

1725

1729

2105

2109

2104
2108

211
2

2105
2109 211

3
211

7
2121

2125
2129

2133

2137

2141

2104
2108 211

2
211

6
2120

2124
2128

2132
2105

2109
211

3
211

7
2121

2125

2129
2133

211
2

211
6
2120

2124

2128
2132

2136
2140

2144
1713

1717

1721

1705
1709

1704
1708

1705

1709

1704

1708

1712

2105
2109

211
3
211

7 21212125
2129

2133

2137
2141

2145 2149

2153 2157

2161
17121716

17201724

2104

2108
211

2

211
6

2120

2124 2128

2132
2136

2140
2144

2148
2152

2156
2160

2164
2168

2172
2175

2179

21832187

2191
2195

1704

1708

1712

1716
1720

17241728

17321736

17401744

1748
1752

17561760

1764
1768

17721776

1780

211
3211
7

2121
2125

21292133

2137
2141

21452149

2153
2157

2161

2165
2169

2171
2175

2104
2108

211
2 211

6
2120

2124
2128

2132
2136

21402144
2148

21052109
211

3

2104
2108

2105

2109

2104
2108

2105
2109

211
3

211
7

2125

21212133

2129 2141
2145

2153

2149
2157
2161

2165
2169

21732177

2181
2185

2189
2193

2201
2205

22092213

2217

ZONING MAP Z 24-26

¯
2701 East Centerville Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

0 1,000500 Feet



EXHIBIT B 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-26 
 

2701 East Centerville Road 
 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development is to approve a Lineman Training and Bulk 
Materials Storage Use 

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption 
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided 
herein. 

 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of Industrial (IN) 

District and Community Retail (CR) District as set forth 
in Chapter 2 of the Garland Development Code and Planned 
Development (PD) District 85-62, are included by 
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise specified 
by this ordinance. 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 
Concept Plan: Development shall be in general 
conformance with the Concept Plan. In the event there is 
conflict between the approved Concept Plan and the 
Specific Regulations below, the Specific Regulations 
shall apply.  

 
 V. Specific Conditions: 
  

A. Permitted Uses: 
In addition to Lineman Training and Bulk Materials 
Storage, land uses are permitted as in Planned 
Development (PD) District 85-62. 

 
B. Concept Plan: The site layout shall be in general 

conformance with the approved Concept Plan labeled 
Exhibit C. 







   
 

 

        Z 24-26 
 

  

View of the proposed site looking West. 
  

Looking East from the site across East Centerville Road. 

 
 
 

 

View looking North up East Centerville Road. Looking South down East Centerville Road. 
























































	Agenda
	AI_9667_Plan Commission Minutes for June 24, 2024
	       ATT_June 24, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes 
	MINUTES

	AI_9669_P 24-20 Sears-Miller - Replat
	       ATT_P 24-20 Sears-Miller - Replat Report and Attachments
	AI_9664_Z 24-05 Spiars Engineering (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 24-05 Spiars Engineering Report and Attachments
	       ATT_Z 24-05 Spiars Engineering Responses
	AI_9657_Z 24-12 Spiars Engineering (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 24-12 Spiars Engineering Report and Attachments 
	       ATT_Z 24-12 Spiars Engineering Responses
	AI_9662_Z 24-19 Triangle Engineering (District 1)
	       ATT_Z 24-19 Triangle Engineering Report and Attachments
	PC Exhibits.pdf
	4.2 8.5X11 SITE PLAN
	6.2 8.5X11 LANDSCAPE PLAN
	5.1 8.5X11 COLOR ELEVATIONS


	       ATT_Z 24-19 Triangle Engineering Responses
	AI_9663_Z 24-25 ZoneDev on behalf of StoneHawk Capital (District 3)
	       ATT_Z 24-25 ZoneDev on behalf of StoneHawk Capital Report and Attachments
	       ATT_Z 24-25 ZoneDev on behalf of StoneHawk Capital Responses
	AI_9665_Z 24-26 R-Delta Engineers, Inc. (District 2)
	       ATT_Z 24-26 R-Delta Engineers, Inc. Report and Attachments
	       ATT_Z 24-26 R-Delta Engineers, Inc. Responses

